
ROWAN COUNTY TOURISM BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY  

CONVENTION & VISITORS BUREAU 

Wednesday, June 19, 2024, Noon 

I. Call to Order      Krista Sullivan 

II. Approval of Meeting Minutes        Krista Sullivan 

III. Financial Report   James Meacham 

A. Financial Report & Tourism Market Update

B. 2024-25 Tourism Budget Review and Public Hearing

C. 2024-25 Budget Consideration

IV. Tourism Program of Work Report

A. Destination Services, Sales, and Marketing

1. Digital Program   Brooke Arrowood 

2. Trolley Program   Brooke Arrowood 

3. Sales, Marketing and Communications    James Meacham 

B. Tourism Development    James Meacham 

1. Wayfinding

i. Award Procurement Wayfinding Sign Contract to lowest qualified bidder

2. Railwalk

V. Additional Business: No July Meeting 

VI. Adjourn



1 

ROWAN COUNTY TOURISM 
 BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Wednesday, May 15, 2024, 12:00 pm 

BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

Board Members Attending: Craig Pierce, Kimberly Morgan, Stephen Kidd, Sada Troutman, Therese 
Henderson, Karen Alexander, Richard Reinholz, Andy Maben, Krista Sullivan, April Saylor 

Not Attending: Vivian Hopkins, 

TDA Staff: James Meacham, Tara Furr, Brooke Arrowood 

RCTDA Call to Order 

Krista Sullivan called RCTDA to order at 12:00pm.  

Approval of the Minutes 

Motion: Craig Pierce made the motion for approval of the April 2024 minutes. 
Second: Stephen Kidd 
Motion: Approved 

Financial Report & Tourism Market Update 

Meacham reported that occupancy tax revenues as of April 30, 2024, for fiscal year 2023-24 are 
$1,112,151 and are in line with budget expectations. The March 2024 occupancy taxes were 
approximately 1.0% behind March of 2023. The year-to-date revenues on an accrual basis through April 
were $57,442 ahead of expenses with the total revenues equaling $1,409,139 versus expenses of 
$1,351, 697. 

Meacham reported total current assets of $554,593 which were $44,493 higher than the month ending 
3.30.24 due to an increase in cash on hand and an increase in occupancy tax account receivables. The 
accounts receivable equaled $272,250 which includes March and April’s outstanding occupancy tax 
revenues. Cash on hand as of April 30, 2024, was $282,342; $24,999 higher than the previous month. 
Meacham reported that from a fiscal perspective, it has a very healthy financial position.  

Motion: Craig Pierce made the motion for approval of the financial report. 
Second: Richard Reinholz 
Motion: Approved 



2 

Meacham reported that he needed to add an item to the agenda under the financial section which was 
to add Consideration of the 2023-24 Audit Contract with Eddie Carrick, CPA. 

Motion: Craig Pierce made the motion for approval of the 2023-24 Audit Contract with Eddie Carrick, 
CPA, cost not to exceed $5000. 
Second: Steven Kidd 
Motion: Approved. 

2024-25 Tourism Budget Presentation 

Meacham gave a presentation on the purposed 2024-25 Tourism Budget and distributed the proposed 
budget to the board for review over the next thirty days. Meacham touched on the key fact that this 
proposed budget is flat compared to the current fiscal year. The largest expense increases staff has 
seen this year have been all the various insurances (worker comp., health insurance etc., service fees, 
and administrative expenses related to contracts).  

The proposed 2024-25 Tourism Budget is on the website for the public, a public notice has been placed 
and the budget is available for anyone to view in person as well. Meacham reviewed each budget 
section with Furr covering marketing and program of work expenses. Furr stated the goals and 
objectives for the coming year of 2024-25 and covered how each marketing strategy will be 
implemented including those for the Trolleys. Furr reported on the overarching marketing trends that are 
being observed in the market and how marketing staff will continue to work to utilize those trends. For 
example, Influencers and micro-influencers are continuing to work well and will be utilized in 2024-25. 
The stay and play packages program will be another important tool that will continue in 2024-25. 
“Rowan Original” experiences will be promoted which allows Rowan County to connect best with the 
target market.  

Meacham reviewed the proposed budget stating projected occupancy income of $1.4 million. Meacham 
covered each budget category in the TDA and the CVB as well as the capital budget with explanation of 
proposed increases or decreases from the prior budget. (see attached Proposed 2024-25 Rowan Tourism 
Budget for detail).  

The public hearing is scheduled for June 15, 2024 at the RCTDA Board Meeting and a public notice was 
published in the Salisbury Post this month.  

Tourism Program of Work 

Brooke Arrowood reported that the email newsletter open rate for April was 33.86% with 4,969 subscribers. 
The website stats year to date there are 115,481 page views and 51,226 users. Emphasis was placed on the 
Cheerwine Festival and promotion of Cheerwine packages and all events in April.   

Arrowood reported the online package booking platform continues to work well with 74 reservations and 106 
room nights year to date with the numbers doubling from the previous meeting. 77% of the reservations made 
through the platform are with package bookings. 

She alos reported that across social media total following of almost 37,814 across all platforms and total 
engagement of 34,190. Facebook followers have passed 30,000 which is exciting. Top engaged posts include 
Rowan County’s April in the Arts and the Guide to the Cheerwine Festival blog, Highlight of the Sidewalk Deli 



3 

and Cannon Ballers Ticket Giveaway. Blog top visited page 32 posts and 10,680 views. Top blog in April was 
the Guide to the Cheerwine Festival blog with over 500 views in just the month of April.  

Arrowood noted that Jenna did cover the Cheerwine Festival to focus on advertising and promoting the 
package. Influencers year to date impact is 42,174 engagement and 762,990 views. Total digital engagements 
year to date are 204,206 with over 1,419,387 million in reach at the end of April. Arrowood reported year to 
date trolley bookings of 115, and there are 22 bookings occurring in the next 90 days. Revenue year to date is 
$22,456. Over the next 90 days the Trolleys will be engaged in numerous festivals, weddings, and private 
rentals.  

Furr reported paid marketing placements of 37 for the month of April bringing the year-to-date total to 119. The 
marketing message continues to focus on storytelling to promote the brand, the destination, destination events 
and booking overnight stays within the county.  

Furr reported that the first ever Cheerwine Festival overnight stay package just concluded with 14  packages 
and 20 room nights. Other ongoing packages include Day Out with Thomas (DOWT), Spring Fun on the Farm, 
Cannon Ballers and the Visa package. Upcoming packages include the Dragon Boat Festival, Hot Air Balloon 
Festival, and Polar Express. Furr reports year to date totals of 67 packages and 98 room nights.  

Furr reported that partner engagement for April consisted of visits to included two event visits to Cedar Hill and 
Cannon Ballers Stadium and three partner visits. Many partners attended the Hospitality Event at the Cannon 
Ballers with over 600 participants. The event was very well attended, and it was a beautiful night.  

In group sales, Furr continues to work with several groups that will be returning in 2024 such as the Dragon 
Boat event and the Southeast Softball Tournament. Furr reported year to date, 7 groups with 99 room night 
associated with those groups.  

Furr reported that has received ten tourism support requests in April with 122 room nights associated with 
these groups.  

Furr reported that for the 2024 year ahead, staff will continue to push all the available packages, continue to 
promote strawberries at Patterson Farms, Cheerwine Festival, Pops at the Post, Juneteenth overnight stays 
through storytelling, and promoting summer events.  

Tourism Development 

Meacham reported that wayfinding RFPs were broken into two separate bids. The welcome signs qualified as 
an informal construction project. The directional signs as a formal procurement. The procurement bids are due 
later this month. The construction project of 18 welcome signs was done through a public bid process with two 
options. The bid is to be awarded by the lowest bidder, requests for bids were advertised as well as sent to 8 
qualified bidders. Three qualified bids were received. Recommendation from the staff is to award the bid for 
option A to Ritelite Signs from Concord NC, which is a historically under-utilized business and was the lowest 
responsive bidder. 

Motion: Craig Pierce made the motion to award Ritelite Signs as the lowest qualified bidder the contract for 
Option A. 
Second: Richard Reinholz 
Motion: Approved.  

Meacham thanked Craig Pierce for his voice of support with Rowan County leadership. Meacham reported that 
the county attorney, the TDA attorney and himself have been working on the interlocal agreement between 
Rowan County and Rowan County Tourism on the Railwalk Development Project. Meacham will be at the 



4 

County Commission Board meeting on Thursday to submit for consideration to the county commission 
approval of the interlocal agreement for funding to work in partnership to complete the project.  

Motion: Stephen Kidd made the motion for approval of the interlocal agreement as presented with Rowan 
County for the RailWalk Development Project pending Board of Commissioner approval. 
Second: Sada Troutman  
Motion: Approved  

Meacham reported that the agritourism plan with PVAG is moving along very well. Patterson Farm has started 
two new attractions out at the farm from the plan.  

Additional Business 

Meacham reminded the board that the next meeting, June 15th is the public hearing, approval of the budget 
and hopefully bring another bid for consideration for the wayfinding project. There will be no July RCTDA 
Board meeting. 

The meeting adjourned at 1 pm. 
Respectfully submitted.  
Lesley Pullium 
SRCVB 
















	6.19.24 Board Meeting Packet.pdf
	June 2024 Tourism Board Mtg. Agenda.pdf
	Rowan Tourism Board Minutes May 2024_.pdf

	Scanned from a Xerox Multifunction Printer (003).pdf



